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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Landmarks of historical significance include: a workshop, carriage shed,
grainery, chicken coop, cabin, stone cellar, bunk house, main house, barn,
beef wheel and stockade fences. The barn is a unique structure, built in

the 1880's but still in remarkably good condition, due to its' continued

use over the years. The barn measures 120' X 50', and the center span

is 28-30' high. It has a manger rack/feed rack arrangement full length on
both east and west sides, and an alleyway in the middle to accomodate a large
load of hay. During the CCC days the roof was replaced with pine shakes
(similar to the original). In recent years these have deteriorated and the
roof again needs replacing. The beef wheel is in need of restoration, with
all pieces stored at the Malheur National Wildlife Refuge Headquarters. The
beef wheel is a good historical attraction as few remain today. The stockade
fences still demonstrate that type of fencing. The old stone cellar was built
in 1900, shown on an inscription in the keystone of the door arch, along with
the F-G brand of the French and Glen partnership. The building is 24' X 36!
and is in a poor state of preservation. Parts of the sod roof and stone walls
have caved in. The building has considerable historical significance and may
be worthy of restoration. The site of the ranch is graced by large trees which
were planted in 1892 by Emanuel Clark.

0f the original ranch buildings, seven of ten remain, essentially unaltered.
Some buildings have been reroofed but retain their original character. As a
subheadquarters of the famous P Ranch, the Sod House Ranch is an intact remnant
of PFrench'’s innovative and expedient architectural style. The willow corrals
were razed in the 1930's and replaced with pine pole fencing, but original
stockade fences of hand hewn Jjuniper slabs are still functional today.

Buildings are constructed of native materials including pine lumber, hand
hewn aspen boards, juniper posts and poles and locally quarried stone.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Sod House Ranch with its buildings and related ranch facilities virtually
intact is, according to the Oregon Historical Society, one of the finest examples
of an Eastern Oregon Ranch remaining in the State. Its restoration is being
considered as Harney County's major Bicentennial project to be completed in 1976.

The Sod House Ranch area was first acquired under the Swamp Act by A. H. Robie
in the 1870's. Robie so0ld his interests in the Diamond and Blitzen Valleys to
Pete French in 1877, and the ranch became a subheadquarters for French's cattle
operations out of the P-Ranch. It was probably first occupied in the 1880's,
with the barn undoubtedly one of the first improvements. Emanuel Clark, who
planted the trees in 1892, operated the ranch as French's foreman for a long
time. The lumber for the barn came from the Robie sawmill near King Mountain
north of Burns, Oregon.

The purchase of the Sod House Ranch properties (MB,OOO acres) is representative
of the era of rapid and easy acquisition and control of public lands by powerful
cattle barons. Peter French, celebrated in book and story as one of the most
colorful of them all, was a progressive ranch manager and a vigorous builder

who combined the Texas tradition of rumning large herds of half-wild cattle ‘on-
the open range with the English methods of stockfarming. He carefully controlled
the breeds and strains of his stock, harvested the abundant native hay for winter
feed, and irrigated thousands of acres of meadowland. Local citizens still find
his methods and merits a subject of hot debate.

Sod House Ranch was named because of its proximity to the first permanent
residence (constructed of sod blocks) in the county. The ranch has been used
in cattle operations for 100 years and has been in federal ownership as part
of the Malheur National Wildlife Refuge since 1935.

A detailed history and plan for stabilization, restoration, and interpretation
have been prepared by refuge personnel. It is hoped that, once restored, the
ranch will be opened to the public since it offers unique opportunities for
interpretation of land use patterns and ranching trends significant in the
history of the western U.S.
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CONDITION

landmarks of historical significance include: a workshop, carriage shed,
grainery, chicken coop, cabin, stone cellar, bunk house, main house, barn,
beef wheel and stockade fences. The barn is a unique structure, built in
the 1880's but still in remarkably good condition, due to its' continued
use over the years, The barn measures 120' x 50', and the center span

ia 28-30' high, It has a manger rack/feed rack arrangement full length on
both east and west sides, and an alleyway in the middle to accommodate a
large load of hay. During the CCC days the roof was repalced with pine
shakes (similar to the original). In recent years these have detleriorated
and the roof again needs replacing. The beef wheel is in need of restoratjion,
with all pieces stored at the Malheur National Wildlife Refuge headquarters.
The beef wheel is a good historical attraction as few remain today. The
stockade fences still demenstrate that type of fencing. The old stone
cellar was built in 1900, shown on an inscription in the keystone of the
door arch, along with the F-G brand of the French and Glen partnership.
The building is 24" x 36' and is in a poor state of preservation. FParts
of the sod roof and stone walls have caved in. The building has consider-
atle historical significance and may be worthy of restoration. The site
of the ranch is graced by larze trees which were planted in 1892 by
Emanuel Clark,

Of the original ranch buildings, seven of ten remain, essentially
unaltered. Some buildings have been reroofed but retain their
original character. As a subheadquarters of the famous P Ranch,

the Sod House Ranch is an intact remmant of French’s innovative and
expedient architectural style. The willow corrals were razed in

the 1980’s and replaced with pine pole fencing, but original stockade
fences of hand hewn juniper slabs are still functional today.

SNOILONYLSNI I3S

Buildings are constructed of native materials including pine lumber,
hand hewn aspen boards, juniper posts and poles and locally quarried
stone.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Sod House Ranch with its buildingsand related ranch facilities virtually
intact is, according to the Oregon Historical Society, one of the finest
examples of an Eastern Oregon Ranch remaining in the State. Its restor-
ation is being considered as Harney County's major Bicentennial project to
be completed in 1976,

The Sod House Ranch area was first acquired under the Swamp Act by A. H.
Robie in the 1870's, Robie sold his interests in the Diamond and Blitzen
Valleys to Pete French in 1877, and the ranch became a subheadquarters for
French's cattle operations out of the P-Ranch., It was probably first
occupied in the 1880's, with the barn undoubtedly one of the first im-
provements, Emanuel Clark, who planted the trees in 1892, operated the
ranch as French's foreman for a long time. The lumber for the barn came
from the Robie sawmill near King Mountain north of Burns, Oregon.

The purchase of the Sod House Ranch properties (43,000 acres) is represen-
tative of the era of rapid and easy acquisition and control of public
lands by powerful cattle barons. Peter French, celebrated in book and
story as one of the most colorful of them all, was a progressive ranch
manager and a vigorous builder who combined the Texas tradition of running
large herds of half-wild cattle on the open range with the English methods
of stockfarming., He carefully controlled the breeds and strains of his
stock, harvested the abundant native hay for winter feed, and irrigated
thousands of acres of meadowlamd. Local citizens still find his methods
and merits a subject of hot debate.

Sod House Ranch was named because of it’s proximity to the first permanent
residence (constructed of sod blocks) in the county. The ranch has been
used in cattle operations for 100 years and has been in federal ownership
as part of the Malheur National VWildlife Refuge since 1935,

A detailed history and plan for stabilization, restoratiopi and interpreta-
tion have been prepared by refuge personnel. It is hoped that, once re-
atored, the ranch will be opened tothe public since it offers unigue
opportunities for interpretation of land use patterns and ranching trends
significant in the history of the western U.S.
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